
Page 1 of 11 

Brevard County Marine Advisory Council (BMAC) 
Space Coast Room, Building C, Government Center, Viera, Florida 

Members Present:  Members Absent 
Jerry Butz  Doug Jaren 
Mike Cunningham  Rick McCrary 
Gary Hanlin 
Jim Mazza 
John Mongioi 
George Reynolds 

Staff Present: 
Matt Culver, NRMO Boating & Waterways Program Coordinator 
Eddie Leonard, Marine Science Extension Agent, Agriculture & Extension Services 
Liz McDuffee, Administrative Assistant, NRMO 

Public Present: 
Steve Wayne, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 
Ron Morgan 

I.  Call to Order 

Chairman Mike Cunningham called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
II.  Approval of Minutes 

Gary Hanlin moved to approve the November 20, 2008 meeting minutes and Jim Mazza 
seconded the motion.  The 11/20/08 minutes were approved unanimously. 

III.  Agenda Items 
1.  New Business 

a.  BMAC Recognition 
Mike Cunningham read a resolution that was presented to the BMAC by the Board 
of County Commissioners at its 1/13/09 meeting (see Attachment A).  Mr. 
Cunningham stated that the Board’s recognition of the BMAC says a lot about what 
has been accomplished in the last 10 years by both the present and past members. 
The resolution specifically referenced BMAC’s accomplishments, including the boat 
pump­out survey, the Brevard Boaters’ Guide and the 2007 Recreational Boating 
Characterization Study.  The Board of County Commissioners also recognized the 
BMAC’s efforts in developing the Brevard Comprehensive Maritime Management 
Master Plan which is one of the first of its kind in the State.  Mr. Cunningham asked 
the County Commissioners to display the Resolution as well as the “Citizens For 
Florida Waterways George Reynolds Award” that the BMAC received in October, 
2008, in a public location.  Both awards will be displayed at the Natural Resources 
Management Office until further notice.



Page 2 of 11 

b.  BMAC appointments 

Mr. Cunningham told the BMAC members that he had received a resignation email 
from Finnbarr Murphy who represents District 3.  Mr. Murphy has other obligations 
this year and will not be able to continue serving on the BMAC.  Mr. Cunningham 
sent Mr. Murphy a letter of appreciation for his service and asked him to stay in 
touch.  His knowledge and expertise are still valuable to the BMAC.  In addition, 
Wayne Mozo was not reappointed by District 5 and his expertise will be greatly 
missed as well.  At this time, the D­3 and D­5 Commissioners have not appointed 
replacements.  All other BMAC members have been reappointed. 

c.  Honda Research and Development 
Mike Cunningham stated that Honda Research and Development has recently 
located in Grant on the old Bombardier site.  Mr. Cunningham visited the facility to 
welcome them and dropped off copies of the Brevard Boaters’ Guide.  Mr. 
Cunningham will meet with the facilities’ President next week and will ask for a 
representative to meet with BMAC to give an overview of what they are doing and 
what they anticipate their impact on Brevard County will be. 

2.  Old Business 

a.  Brevard Race Week 
Jerry Butz stated that during the 11/20/08 BMAC meeting, he was asked to help 
develop a proposal for a Brevard County Race Week.  Mr. Butz sent an email with 
his proposal to NRMO staff and the BMAC members and asked for input from the 
BMAC (see Attachment B).  Mr. Butz stated that his commitment from the 
November meeting was to create two anchor events.  The first weekend event is an 
ISAF Grade 4 international match race.  The second weekend event is the 
Rockledge Centennial Cup race.  With those two events as the bookends, the rest of 
the week can be filled with other water activities. 
The BMAC members discussed name recognition.  It was felt that there would be 
more name recognition with “Cocoa” than with “Brevard.”  Jerry Butz said that he 
has done research when naming other events and determined that “Cocoa” is 
nationally known.  However, Mr. Butz is working with the Brevard County Parks 
and Recreation Department to reserve parks for the events and felt that Brevard 
County’s participation should be noted in some way.  Mr. Butz is hoping to book 
Lee Werner Park for the weekend events.  Matt Culver suggested having booths set 
up from organizations such as Brevard County Watershed Program, the Agricultural 
Extension Office, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, and the 
Coast Guard Auxiliary.  Mr. Butz stated that the events do not all need to occur at 
Lee Werner.  Other parks such as Kelly Park and Rotary Park could also be used. 
Gary Hanlin asked who would coordinate the rest of the week’s activities.  Mr. Butz 
answered that he will organize and operate the two weekend events, but someone 
else needs to step forward to coordinate the rest of the week’s events.  Mr. Hanlin 
stated that he was not able to volunteer as a coordinator.  Mr. Butz said that Ron 
Morgan has been very active in getting people organized.  Mr. Morgan stated that 
Claudia Massa has volunteered to help coordinate the events.  Mr. Morgan handed 
out a list of suggested events for the week (see Attachment C).  Mr. Morgan stated 
that he discussed the proposed event with members of the Cocoa Beach Surfing 
Club and they suggested calling the National Kidney Foundation because it



Page 3 of 11 

sponsored one of the Surfing Club’s board races.  Mr. Morgan also sent a package 
to Tony Sasso that included the BMAC meeting minutes when this topic was first 
discussed.  Mr. Morgan suggested notifying Cocoa Beach, Port Canaveral, and 
other municipalities for their recommendations and requirements.  He mentioned 
that there would be a need for additional police due to large crowds.  Mr. Morgan 
stated that there have been no negatives from anyone he has talked to.  He plans to 
talk to the Florida Institute of Technology, the University of Central Florida, and 
the University of Florida regarding scull racing participation.  Mike Cunningham 
stated that he liked the Cocoa name for recognition as long as Brevard County 
doesn’t mind.  Perhaps it could be called Cocoa Regatta, Brevard County 
International Race Week.  Jerry Butz clarified that the event will be bigger than a 
regatta.  Matt Culver added that if the Parks’ facilities were used, the Parks and 
Recreation Department should probably be mentioned. George Hanlin added that 
“Space Coast” could also be considered or that “on the water” could be added to the 
title.  The BMAC agreed that any preliminary naming ideas should be run by 
department heads.  Another consideration should be how much effort each 
organization is putting into the event.  Jerry Butz suggested “Brevard Waterfest 
sponsored by …”  Mike Cunningham suggested putting logos of all sponsors on 
signage and pamphlets.  Mr. Butz asked the council members to help determine 
the name for the week­long event.  Suggestions included: 

•  Brevard County Boating Week 
•  Brevard County Racing Week 
•  Cocoa Boating Week 
•  Cocoa Racing Week 
•  Cocoa Regatta, Brevard County International Race Week (It was noted that 

the event is larger than a regatta.) 
•  Space Coast … 
•  … on the water 
•  Brevard Waterfest, sponsored by … 

Matt Culver stated that Debbie Coles, Environmental Management Program 
Supervisor in the Natural Resources Management Office, is familiar with fund 
raising and that he will talk to her to see if she is available to help out.  Jerry Butz 
stated that the weekend events are self funding.  Ron Morgan stated that we will 
need sponsors for prizes for the other events and suggested contacting Ron Jon Surf 
Shop.  Mr. Morgan also suggested holding an ocean paddle board event and 
possibly inviting an expert from Hawaii.  There also is a need for sponsors for other 
items such as funding for crowd control, gas for boats, etc.  George Reynolds made 
a motion to move forward on the project.  John Mongioi seconded the motion and it 
passed unanimously.  The BMAC was asked to forward ideas to Jerry Butz and Ron 
Morgan. 

b.  Derelict Vessels (DVs) Landfill Fee Waivers 
Doug Jaren stated that he is still having a problem with being charged for disposing 
of derelict vessels at the landfill.  Mike Cunningham stated that he had a meeting 
with Euri Rodriguez, Director of Solid Waste, and Peggy Busacca, County Manager, 
and was told if that happens to stop right at the landfill entrance and call Mr. 
Rodriguez immediately.  Mr. Jaren stated that his problem is that a third party carrier 
picks up the destroyed derelict vessel and it is not apparent from looking at it that it



Page 4 of 11 

is a boat.  Gary Hanlin suggested giving a special invoice to the hauler to give to the 
landfill specifying that it is a derelict vessel. 

c.  Comprehensive Maritime Management Master Plan Workgroup Update – Matt 
Culver 

The first CM3P Work Group that focused on increasing ramp, marina, dry stack and 
managed mooring field options has completed its recommendations.  The final draft 
is now being written and will be presented to the BMAC in an upcoming meeting. 
The second work group had its first meeting on January 14 th .  It is focusing on 
retaining working waterfronts.  John Mongioi and Eddie Leonard, who were on the 
first work group, are also members of the second group.  The group meets every 
other Wednesday from 5 to 8 PM.  Mr. Culver will bring updates back to the 
BMAC. 

d.  Florida Forever Stan Mayfield Working Waterfronts Grant Update – Matt Culver 
Brevard County has applied for a grant to purchase the Blue Crab Cove which 
includes Docs Bait Shop and The Crab Shack.  Brevard’s application was ranked 
second in the state, so Mr. Culver is optimistic about the project.  If awarded, the 
funding will go to preserve the last working waterfront in Brevard.  The Florida 
Communities Trust Governing Board is meeting on January 29 th to finalize the 
rankings.  Ernie Brown and the grant writer are planning on attending the meeting to 
answer questions.  The Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency has agreed to supply 
the grant match up to $1.5 million.  The whole process will take approximately one 
year.  All seven of Brevard’s legislative delegation signed a letter of support.  Some 
of the delegates also wrote individual letters of support.  Gary Hanlin suggested that, 
if Brevard gets the grant, a thank you letter should be written to Representative 
Debbie Mayfield thanking her for her husband’s effort in this area. 

e.  Derelict Vessels – Matt Culver 

There are 10 to 12 derelict vessels that have been permitted and are ready for 
removal.  The close for contractors’ bids is at the end of this month. 

f.  Mooring Field Analysis – Eddie Leonard 
Matt Culver, Ernie Brown, Jim Fletcher, Eddie Leonard, and Bob Swett and Thomas 
Ruppert (University of Florida) had an initial meeting to discuss data collection and 
determine what data already exists.  This background work is being done now so that 
when the college becomes fully staffed for this project in July, we are ready to hit 
the ground running.  At least one more background meeting will occur before the 
project starts.  Mr. Leonard handed out the most recent draft of Florida Fish and 
Wildlife Conservation Commission changes in boating regulations.  Mr. Leonard 
stated that it is moving forward as legislation, so if the BMAC members want 
modifications they need to move quickly.  The draft leaves mooring time frames as 
options in each jurisdiction.  It also places restrictions on mooring that is adjacent to 
a facility (like a marina).  Boaters can moor but they can’t leave their boats 
unattended.  Matt Culver stated that the BMAC may want to schedule this item for 
the next BMAC meeting.



Page 5 of 11 

IV.  Reports 
1.  Staff Report – Matt Culver, Natural Resources Management Office (NRMO) 

a.  BMAC stationery 
This item is still pending.  It is not clear if the BMAC can generate its own stationery 
and, if it can, for what situations it is authorized to use it. 

b.  Stem­to­Stern Conference 
Ernie Brown is planning on approaching the Board concerning funding for the 
BMAC members and NRMO staff to attend the Stem to Stern Conference. 

2.  Staff Report – Eddie Leonard, Agriculture & Extension Services 
a.  Mr. Leonard handed out his plan of work for the BMAC to review (see 

Attachment D).  He stated that he added sedimentation to the plan after George 
Reynolds’ input at the last meeting.  Mr. Leonard asked the BMAC to send 
questions to him or to bring them up at the next meeting. 

b.  Matt Culver and Eddie Leonard attended the West Coast Artificial Reef 
Symposium in Sarasota last year.  The State Artificial Reef Summit is going to 
be held in Brevard in late September or early October in 2009.  Mr. Leonard 
said that he is one of the organizers and is expecting a good turnout because the 
International Artificial Reef Symposium is being held in Rio de Janerio right 
after the Florida Summit in Brevard. 

V.  Public Input 

Steve Wayne 
Mr. Wayne stated that a new officer for the north end of the County was finishing up training 
this week.  The officer will make an introductory visit to the BMAC at a future meeting. 

VI.  Adjournment 

The motion to adjourn was made by George Reynolds and seconded by Jerry Butz.  The 
motion passed unanimously and the meeting adjourned at 7:15 PM.



Page 6 of 11 

ATTACHMENT A



liz.mcduffee
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B

liz.mcduffee
Typewritten Text
Page 7 of 11



liz.mcduffee
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C

liz.mcduffee
Typewritten Text
Page 8 of 11



liz.mcduffee
Typewritten Text
Page 9 of 11



liz.mcduffee
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D

liz.mcduffee
Typewritten Text
Page 10 of 11



liz.mcduffee
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D

liz.mcduffee
Typewritten Text
Page 11 of 11


	BMAC 1_15_09  Final  Minutes w_o attachments.pdf
	BMAC minutes 1_15_09 attachment B
	BMAC minutes 1_15_09 attachment C
	BMAC minutes 1_15_09 attachment D



